
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

TEXAS TECH UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
 
 

BOARD OF REGENTS 
 
 

AGENDA BOOK 
 

 
 

February 23-24, 2017 
 





 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

AGENDA  

















02/23-24/2017 

  ix  

matters permissible under Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code, including:   

 
a. Consultation with Attorney — Section 

551.071. 
 
b. Discussion of personnel matters – Section 

551.074. 
 

3. Open Session:  At the conclusion of Executive 
Session, the committee will convene into Open 
Session in the Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, 
Student Union Building, 15th Street and Akron 
Avenue, to consider appropriate action, if any, on 
items discussed in Executive Session. 

 
4. Adjournment 
 

IV. Meeting of the Board—Call to Order; 
reconvene into Open Session of the Board  ............................. Chairman  

 
V. Executive Session:  The Board may convene into Executive 

Session in the Red Raider Lounge (Room 119), First Floor, Student 
Union Building, 15th Street and Akron Avenue to consider matters 
permissible under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, 
including, for example:   ................................................................ Chairman  

 
A. Consultation with attorney regarding privileged 

communications, pending or contemplated litigation and 
settlement negotiations – Section 551.071 
 

B. Deliberations regarding real property:  The purchase, lease, 
exchange, or value of real property – Section 551.072 

 
C. Deliberations regarding prospective gifts – Section 551.073 
 
D. Personnel matters: Discuss the appointment, employment, 

evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of 
employees – Section 551.074 

 
E. Deliberations regarding security devices—deployment of 

security personnel or devices – Section 551.076 
 

VI. Open Session:  The Board will reconvene in Open Session in the 
Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th 









02/23-24/2017 

  xiii  

D. Personnel matters: Discuss the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of 
employees – Section 551.074 

 
E. Deliberations regarding security devices—deployment of 

security personnel or devices – Section 551.076 
 

XVII. Open Session:  The Board will convene into Open Session in the Ballroom 
(Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street and Akron 
Avenue, and meet as a Committee of the Whole and Meeting of the Board 
to consider and act on: 

 
A. Consideration of appropriate action, if any, on items 

discussed in Executive Session ................................. Vice Chairman 
 

  B. Chairman’s Announcements ................................................. Chairman 
 
XVIII. Adjournment  ............................................................................... Chairman 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

FACILITIES  
 





02/23-24/2017 

F-2 

 

 

NOTE: Following consideration of the above items by the 
committee, the Committee Chair will present the 
Committee Report to the full Board of Regents for its 
consideration on Friday, February 24, 2017. 

  



02/23-24/2017 

F-3 

1. ASU:  Approve scope expansion and budget increase to 
the new Press Box project at the LeGrand (Football) 
Stadium. 

 Presenter:  Mr. Michael Molina & Dr. Brian May  Presentation Time: 5 minutes 
 Board approval required by:  Section 08.01.3, Regents’ Rules 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents authorize the chancellor or the chancellor’s designee to (i) expand the 
project scope and increase the project budget for the new Press Box at the 
LeGrand (Football) Stadium at 1st Community Credit Union Field by $476,000 for 
a total project budget of $3,976,000; (ii) report the project change to the Texas 
Higher Education Coordinating Board; (iii)  amend the design professional 
contract; (iv) complete the contract documents; and (v) amend the construction 
contract.  The budget increase will be funded with a gift-in-hand. 
 
The chancellor further recommends that the president be authorized to negotiate 
and execute any and all agreements with city, state, and county agencies, utility 
companies and other entities required to successfully complete the project. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

In February 2016, the Board of Regents approved a project to plan, design, and 
construct a new Press Box at the LeGrand (Football) Stadium at 1st Community 
Credit Union Field with a total budget of $3,000,000.  The project will demolish 
the existing Press Box building and construct a new 3-story Press Box building.  
The new 6,660 gross square foot facility will house concessions area, men's, 
women's, and unisex restrooms, VIP Suites, Press & Game Officials' Boxes, 
Coaches' Box, elevator & stairwells, MPE/utility rooms, and roof-top video deck.  
 
Then in August 2016, the Board of Regents approved expansion of the project 
scope and increased the project budget by $500,000 for a total budget of 
$3,500,000.  The project budget increase covered modifications to (1) the 
window design that provided improved sight lines; (2) enhanced ADA access 
within the suites; and (3) provided additional elevator stops to accommodate all 
visitors with total access to the concession area and the suites.   
 
The proposed project budget increase will cover modifications to (1) provide full 
brick façade to roof in lieu of the Exterior Insulation and Finish System (“EIFS”)  
(incurring additional façade costs); (2) relocation of the building pad 4’ to the west 
(incurring additional earthwork costs); (3) three-story emergency stair structure 
for egress purposes (incurring additional structural costs); (4) increased elevator 
size and capacity for emergency responders (incurring additional elevator and 
structural costs); and (5) design professional costs for associated changes. 
 



02/23-24/2017 

F-4 

The vice president for finance and administration has verified the source of 
funds. 
  









02/23-24/2017 
REVISED 02-16-17 

   

 F-8 REVISED 02-16-17 

The TCVPA Master Plan completed in June 2013 identified needs for the 
Theatre, Dance, Music, Art and administrative offices in the College.  The 
proposed construction projects will provide labs, classrooms/rehearsal spaces 
and office space for the programs to support the past growth and future 
development of these undergraduate arts programs, success in achieving 
Graduate degrees, and will foster interdisciplinary collaboration, research and 
creativity. 
 
The Theatre Department has immediate needs to alleviate overcrowding, 
theatrical and life safety concerns, and accessibility issues as well as program 
deficiencies.  Addressing these issues are critical for the Department to not only 
conduct its programs and graduate students on time, but also to meet the 
accreditation requirements of National Association of Schools of Theatre 
(“NAST”).    
 
The project will construct approximately 50,000 GSF, two-story addition to the 
north side of the Maedgen Theatre building including a lobby, black box theatre, 
classrooms, rehearsal spaces, back of house space, dressing/makeup spaces, 
green room, expansion of the scene shop, a CADD lab, faculty/staff offices with 
support spaces, and an administrative suite.  Also included will be site work, 
utility infrastructure, landscape enhancements, and public art.   
 
The vice president for administration and finance and chief financial officer has 
verified the source of funds. 





02/23-24/2017 

F-10 

pursued a program of excellence for a department, school, or college or for the 
TTU system, the State of Texas, or the United States of America.”   
  



02/23-24/2017 

F-11 

5. TTUS:  Report on Facilitie s Planning and Construction 
projects.  

 
 Presenter:  Mr. Michael Molina   Presentation Time: 5 minutes 

 Report requested by:  Board of Regents 
 

Mr. Michael Molina, Vice Chancellor for Facilities Planning and Construction, 
TTUS, will present a report on Facilities Planning and Construction managed 
projects. 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

FINANCE AND 
ADMINISTRATION  

 



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-1 

Finance and Administration Committee 
 

Committee Meeting 
February 23, 2017 

 
 

Time:  2:00 pm (or upon adjournment of the Facilities Committee meeting) 
 
Place:  Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street 

and Akron Avenue, Lubbock, Texas 
 

Regents: Francis (Chair), Lancaster 
 

Agenda 

�x Approve minutes of committee meetings held on December 15, 2016 
 

III.B. Consideration of items to be recommended by the Finance and 
Administration Committee to the Board of Regents of the Texas Tech 
University System (“TTUS”) for and on behalf of Angelo State University 
(“ASU”), TTUS, the TTU System Administration (“TTUSA”), Texas Tech 
University (“TTU”), Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center 
(“TTUHSC”), and Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center at El 
Paso (“TTUHSC El Paso”) 

 
   Page 
     FA 

 
1. TTU:  Approve budget adjustments for the period 

December 15, 2016 through February 24, 2017 ........................ 3 
 
2. TTU:  Authorize a Solar Energy Power Purchase and 

Research Agreement, including grant of right of access 
and use of site, for Texas Tech University’s Junction 
campus ...................................................................................... 4 

 
3. TTUHSC:  Authorize president to execute contract to 

redesign and upgrade network infrastructure ........................... 14 
 
4. TTUHSC El Paso:  Authorize president to execute 

contract with University of Medicine and Pharmacy at Ho 
Chi Minh City and Pham Ngoc Thach University of 
Medicine at Ho Chi Minh City ................................................... 16 

 
5. TTUS: Report on the TTUS Enterprise Risk Management 

Strategic Initiative ..................................................................... 17 
 
6. TTUS: Report on the 2017 Bond Issuance .............................. 18 



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-2 

7. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Following consideration of the above items by the 

committee, the Committee Chair will present the 
Committee Report to the full Board of Regents for its 
consideration on Friday, February 24, 2017.











  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-7 

utilities.  The rate per kWh for any Renewal Term will be negotiated, but any 
increase will be capped at 2%. 
 
12.  TTU’s Option to Purch ase the Solar Energy System:   Prior to expiration of 
the PPA, TTU will have the option to purchase the Solar Energy System for the 
then fair market value of the Solar Energy System.  TTU must exercise its option 
not more than twelve months but not less than nine months prior to the expiration of 
the PPA.  If TTU does not exercise its option, the PPA will expire and SAT, at its 
expense, will decommission the Solar Energy System, and remediate the Site.  
 
Section 07.12.3.d, Regents’ Rules require board approval on contracts that involve 
a sale or lease of land and/or improvements thereon, or a commitment of funds or 
other resources for more than four years. 
 
Attachments: 
Exhibit A  Diagram of Junction Campus with scale representation of 3 acre Site  
Exhibit B  Preliminary layout diagram dated 11/8/2016 
Exhibit C Proposed Research Projects  
  



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-8 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-9 

 

 

 

 



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-10 

EXHIBIT B 



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-11 

EXHIBIT C 

Paru USA, LLC TTU Junction Campus  
Solar Array Test Bed Research Concepts 

 
Stephen Ekwaro-Osire: College of Engineering Research Coordination of Test Bed 

Solar Research Interests 
 

1.  Modeling and Data analysis of Grid connected solar system 
Stephen Bayne _Solar Tracker ( stephen.bayne@ttu.edu) 

 
The following research tasks will be conducted on the project 

�x Develop a PSCAD model for the grid 
�x Develop a PSCAD model of the solar system and the power electronics 
�x Deploy a PMU to the solar system 
�x Conduct analysis on PMU data 
�x Conduct steady state and transient analysis on the system  
�x Conduct economic analysis of the system  

Support  
�x $50K/year 
�x Software support PSCAD $10K 

 
2.  Solar Panels (Photo-Voltaic, PV Arrays) operation mode analysis: 

  Michael Giesselmann ( michael.giesselmann@ttu.edu) 
 

�x Operated at a fixed angle toward the sun (facing south on the northern 
hemisphere) 

�x Mounted on a frame that tracks the azimuth of the sun from sunrise to 
sunset in one axis 

�x Mounted on a frame that tracks both the azimuth as well as the elevation of 
the sun from sunrise to sunset in two axes. 

 
Tracking the sun and be achieved by using an optical sensor to find the brightest 
spot in the sky and following it. This usually works great if the sun is not obscured 
by clouds. However sun tracking sensors [1] are not optimal if the sun is partially or 
totally obscured by clouds. In these cases the PV arrays can be positioned by an 
algorithm that uses GPS location and precise time of day to position the panel using 
known astronomical data of the sun’s movement across the sky. A combination of 
algorithm and sensor based tracking may yield previously unmatched results. 

 
We are proposing to improve the performance of solar tracking approaches and 
algorithms by combining the advantages of algorithm based and sensor based 
tracking. In particular we are proposing to conduct the following research: 
 

�x Survey the available Sun Tracking Sensors and their performance 
�x Study the performance of algorithm based tracking vs. sensor based tracking 





  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-13 

In connection with the award, TTU must complete many milestones. One GLEAMM 
project milestone could be satisfied through the deployment of a phasor 
measurement unit at or near the Junction Campus solar test bed site. 
 

 

  



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-14 

3. TTUHSC:  Authorize president to execute contract to 
redesign and upgrade network infrastructure. 

 
Presenter: Dr. Chip Shaw    Presentation Time:  5 Minutes 
Board approval required by:  Section 07.12.3.a. Regent’s Rules   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board of 
Regents authorize the president to execute contracts with JANUS Software, Inc., 
d/b/a JANUS Associates, Adaptive Technology Systems and Juniper Networks to 
redesign and upgrade network infrastructure.   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center (“TTUHSC”) recognizes the need to 
redesign and upgrade the network infrastructure across all campuses.   
 
In May of 2016, TTUHSC engaged Janus Associates to evaluate the existing 
network infrastructure for redesign and upgrades to support future growth.  The 
assessment was completed in the fall of 2016 and provided recommendations to 
redesign and update the network infrastructure. The recommendations specifically 
focused on improved monitoring, reducing network complexity, more effective 
configuration and change management controls, increased network resiliency, 
enhanced ability to perform root cause analysis, and improved network security.  
This functionality is important and critical to the current and future TTUHSC 
environment.   
 
The implementation of the network infrastructure redesign and upgrade project is 
anticipated to take up to two years to complete and will involve all TTUHSC 
campuses in addition to multiple vendors as follows: 
 
1. Network personnel with experience in redesigning and architecting network 

infrastructure will be contracted through JANUS Software, Inc., d/b/a JANUS 
Associates (JANUS) through U.S. General Service Administration (GSA) 
contract: GSA Schedule 70, GS-35F-471BA.  Total Cost:  $422,500   

 
2. Network equipment will be procured through Adaptive Technology Systems 

(ATS) on The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) contract 1071615.  Total 
Cost:  $3,647,400   

 
3. Juniper Networks equipment will be procured through the DIR-TSO-2641 

contract.  Total Cost:  $232,500   
 



  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-15 

Total project cost is $4,302,400 plus $120,000 for travel and other expenses.  
HEAF will be used to fund $3,822,400 and $600,000 will be funded through 
operating expense.   
 
Section 07.12.3.a. Regent’s Rules, requires Board approval on contracts that 
involve a stated or implied consideration that totals in excess of $1,000,000 over 
the entire term of the contract, unless a different consideration is specified by this 
policy.   
 
 
  







  02/23-24/2017 

  FA-18 

6. TTUS: Report on the 2017 Bond Issuance. 
 

Presenter: Mr. Gary Barnes    Presentation Time: 5 minutes 
Report requested by:  Chancellor Duncan 

��
Mr. Gary Barnes, Vice Chancellor and CFO, will present a report on the 2017 
issuance of Tuition Revenue Bonds and Revenue Financing System Bonds. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Follow up to the December 2016 approval of the 17th Supplemental Resolution 
to the Revenue Financing System Master Resolution adopted October 21, 1993.  
The 17th Supplemental Resolution authorized “the issuance, sale, and delivery 
of Board of Regents of Texas Tech University System Revenue Financing 
System Refunding and Improvement Bonds in the maximum aggregate principal 
amount of $420 million and approving and authorizing instruments and 
procedures relating thereto.”  

 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

ACADEMIC, 
CLINICAL AND 

STUDENT AFFAIRS  
 



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-1 

Academic, Clinical and Student Affairs Committee 
 

Committee Meeting 
February 23, 2017 

 
 

Time:  2:40 pm (or upon adjournment of the Finance and Administration 
Committee meeting) 

  
 Place:  Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street 

and Akron Avenue, Lubbock, Texas 
 

Regents:  Lancaster (Chair), Esparza, Francis, Stewart 
   

Agenda 
 

�x Approve minutes of committee meeting held on December 15, 2016 
 

III.C. Consideration of items to be recommended by the Academic, Clinical and 
Student Affairs Committee to the Board of Regents of the Texas Tech 
University System (“TTUS”) for and on behalf of Angelo State University 
(“ASU”), TTUS, the TTU System Administration (“TTUSA”), Texas Tech 
University (“TTU”), Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center 
(“TTUHSC”), and Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center at El 
Paso (“TTUHSC El Paso”) 

 
           Page 

   ACS 
 

1. ASU: Approve changes in academic rank .................................. 3 

2. ASU: Approve changes in academic rank and granting of 
tenure ......................................................................................... 4 

3. ASU:  Approve Modification of OP 42.01 Admission to 
the College of Graduate Studies and Research ......................... 6 

4. TTU: Approve changes in academic rank .................................. 7 

5. TTU: Approve changes in academic rank and granting of 
tenure ....................................................................................... 10 

6. TTU: Approve granting of tenure .............................................. 12 

7. TTU: Approve emeritus appointments ...................................... 13 

8. TTU: Approve Bachelor of Arts in Digital Media and 
Professional Communication ................................................... 15 









02/23-24/2017 

ACS-5 

Kanisorn Wongsrichanalai, Ph.D., assistant professor to associate 
professor and tenure, Department of History, College of Arts and 
Humanities. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Members of the faculty of Angelo State University are granted tenure under the 
provisions of the Tenure Policy, which has been approved by the Board of 
Regents. 
 
The appropriate reviewing committees and administrative personnel have judged 
those members of the faculty whose names appear above worthy of academic 
tenure.  The procedure established in the Tenure Policy for the awarding of 
tenure to qualified members of the faculty has been carefully followed.  Approval 
of these individuals brings the number of full-time tenured faculty at Angelo State 
University to 144.  There are a total of 201 faculty, either tenured or tenure-track.  
After these appointments, the percentage of tenure-track faculty who have been 
awarded tenure will be 72 percent.  The number of full-time non-tenure-track 
faculty is 83. 
 
  









02/23-24/2017 

ACS-9 

personnel as worthy of the promotions for which they have been recommended.  
University procedures (OP 32.01) for recommending promotion of qualified 
members of the faculty have been carefully followed. 
 
 
  



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-10 

5. TTU: Approve changes in academic rank and granting of 
tenure. 

 
Presenter: Dr. Michael Galyean  Presentation Time: 2 minutes 
Board approval required by: Section 04.02, Regents’ Rules; TTU Operating Policy 32.17 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve changes in academic rank along with the granting of tenure 
for the following faculty of Texas Tech University effective with the 2017-2018 
academic year: 

Ryan Cassidy, M.S., from assistant librarian to associate librarian, 
University Library;  

Yong Chen, Ph.D., from assistant to associate professor, Department of 
Computer Science, Edward E. Whitacre, Jr., College of Engineering; 

Gordon Christopher, Ph.D., from assistant professor to associate 
professor, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Edward E. 
Whitacre, Jr., College of Engineering;��

Kirsten Cook, Ph.D., from assistant professor to associate professor, 
School of Accounting, Jerry S. Rawls College of Business;  

 
Wesley Dotson, Ph.D., from assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Educational Psychology and Leadership, College of 
Education; 

 
Leif Ellingson, Ph.D., from assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Mathematics and Statistics, College of Arts and 
Sciences;  

 
Michael Findlater, Ph.D., from assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry, College of Arts and 
Sciences;  

 
Raymond Flores, Ed.D., from assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Teacher Education, College of Education;  
 
Lisaann Gittner, Ph.D., from assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Political Science, College of Arts and Sciences;  
 
DeLeith Gossett, J.D., from associate professor to professor, School of 

Law; 
 









02/23-24/2017 

ACS-14 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

According to the Regents’ Rules, emeritus appointments shall be honorary and 
without stipend. The appointments are given at retirement and are intended to 
recognize long and faithful service, or very distinguished service to the university.  
The named individuals qualify for emeritus appointment under the policy of the 
Board of Regents. 
 
 
  



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-15 

8. TTU: Approve Bachelor of Arts in Digital Media and 
Professional Communication.  

 
Presenter: Dr. Michael Galyean     Presentation Time: 3 minutes 
Board approval required by: Section 04.09.1, Regents’ Rules; TTU Operating Policy  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve the new degree program, Bachelor of Arts in Digital Media 
and Professional Communication in the College of Media and Communication, to 
be offered both on-campus and at Texas Tech University (“TTU”) regional sites 
and authorize submission by the Office of the Provost and Senior Vice President 
for Academic Affairs to the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board seeking 
its certification of such a program and to the Southern Association of Colleges 
and Schools Commission on Colleges for acknowledgement of a new degree 
program.  
 
The new program is proposed to begin with the fall semester of 2017. 
 
As outlined in the following table, projected cost of the proposed program over 
five years is $1,161,108. Of this amount, $953,340 is for two new faculty lines, to 
be funded jointly by each off-campus site and the college, and administrative 
staff support. Another $207,768 of the total cost is anticipated for marketing, 
recruitment, and retention activities, support of online instruction, and periodic 
travel of the off-campus site instructors to Lubbock, and the Lubbock-based 
director’s travel to the off-campus sites.  There is no need for new facilities. 
Classroom space is available both on-campus and at the regional sites. These 
costs will be more than covered by total revenue of $2,336,093, comprising 
$654,443 in new formula funding, and $1,681,650 in local tuition and fees. The 
revenue figures are based on conservative enrollment projections. 
 

Five-Year Costs  Five-Year Funding 

Personnel $953,340 Reallocated Funds $0 

Facilities and 
Equipment $0 Anticipated New 

Formula Funding $654,443 

Library, Supplies, 
Materials $0 Special Item Funding $0 

Other  $207,768 Other $1,681,650

Total Costs $1,161,108 Total Funding $2,336,093

 
Enrollment projections, summarized in the following table, indicate steady growth 
in the program over five years to approximately 150 majors, many of whom will 





02/23-24/2017 

ACS-17 

students, students seeking an online degree program, and traditional high 
school students looking for a degree program with more versatile and 
transferrable skills. After meeting with directors of Texas Tech University 
regional sites – TTU Highland Lakes, TTU Fredericksburg, TTU Junction, 
TTU Waco and TTU Collin -- a growing demand is evident among these 
student populations for more degree options that allow them to continue to 
live and work in their local communities.  Both TTU Collin and TTU Waco 
catchments enjoy unique industries in media, communication, environment, 
healthcare and technology that are seeking the types of marketable skills this 
program will offer.  Another target audience will be traditional high school 
students who are looking for a degree program to prepare them to go into 
multiple occupational opportunities in media and communication.  
 

---------- 
Perlmeter, E. (2015, May). Texas Small Business Needs Assessment Poll. Federal Reserve Bank 

of Dallas. Retrieved on April 28, 2016 from: 
http://www.dallasfed.org/assets/documents/cd/poll/15poll.pdf 

 
Robaton, A. (2015, October 13). Where the jobs are: health and tech are in high demand. CNBC. 

Retrieved on May 2, 2016 from: http://www.cnbc.com/2015/10/13/where-the-jobs-are-health-
and-tech-are-in-highdemand.html 

 
  



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-18 

9. TTUHSC:  Approve changes in academic rank.  
 

Presenter:  Steven L. Berk, M. D.                                     Presentation 
Time:  2 minutes 
Board approval required by:  Section 04.02, Regents’ Rules; HSC Operating Policy 60.01 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve changes in academic rank effective September 1, 2017, for 
the individuals as listed below: 
 
Tenured Faculty: 

 
None 
 

Tenure Track Faculty: 
 
Hafiz M.R. Khan, Ph.D., associate professor to professor, Department of 

Public Health, Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences; 
 
Erica Hendrix, Ph.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Laboratory Sciences & Primary Care, School of 
Health Professions; 

 
Wade Redman, Ph.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Laboratory Sciences & Primary Care, School of 
Health Professions; 

 
Non-Tenure Track Faculty: 

 
Olubukunola Adesanya, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Pediatrics, School of Medicine; 
 
Yasir Ahmed, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Internal Medicine, School of Medicine; 
 
Muhittin Belirgen, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Pediatrics, School of Medicine; 
 
Robert Casanova, M.D., associate professor to professor, Department of 

Obstetrics & Gynecology, School of Medicine; 
 
Rahul Chandra, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Internal Medicine, School of Medicine; 
 
Amanda Griffin, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Pediatrics, School of Medicine; 



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-19 

 
Fred Hardwicke, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Internal Medicine, School of Medicine; 
 
Jerry Kirkland, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Family & Community Medicine, School of Medicine; 
 
Alita Loveless, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Obstetrics & Gynecology, School of Medicine; 
 
Janet Meller, M.D., associate professor to professor, Department of 

Pediatrics, School of Medicine; 
 
Marcela Nur, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, Department 

of Pediatrics, School of Medicine; 
 
Ikemefuna Okwuwa, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Family & Community Medicine, School of Medicine; 
 
Anurag Singh, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Internal Medicine, School of Medicine; 
 
Hena Tewari, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Obstetrics & Gynecology, School of Medicine; 
 
Lisa Campbell, DNP, RN, APHN-BC, associate professor to professor, 

Graduate Program, School of Nursing; 
 
Bibha Gautam, Ph.D., RN, CNE, assistant professor to associate 

professor, Accelerated Program, School of Nursing; 
 
Erin Gibson, MSN, RN, CCRN, instructor to assistant professor, 

Traditional Undergraduate Program, School of Nursing; 
 
Christy Howard, MSN, RN-BC, instructor to assistant professor, 

Traditional Undergraduate Program, School of Nursing; 
 
Donna Paris, MSN, RN, CCRN-K, instructor to assistant professor, 

Traditional Undergraduate Program, School of Nursing; 
 
Laura Thomas, Ph.D., RN, CNE, assistant professor to associate 

professor, Graduate Program, School of Nursing; 
 
Patricia White, MSN, RN, CHSE, instructor to assistant professor, 

Traditional Undergraduate Program, School of Nursing; 
 



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-20 

Tiffany Coomer, Pharm.D., instructor to assistant professor, Department of 
Pharmacy Practice, School of Pharmacy; 

 
Young Lee, Pharm.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Pharmacy Practice, School of Pharmacy; and 
 
Wei Wang, M.D., Ph.D., research assistant professor to research 

associate professor, Department of Pharmaceutical Sciences, 
School of Pharmacy. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Those members of the faculty whose names appear on the above list have been 
judged by the appropriate departmental and collegiate committees and 
administrative personnel as worthy of the promotions for which they have been 
recommended. The procedure used in recommending members of the faculty for 
promotion has been followed carefully. 
 
  





02/23-24/2017 

ACS-22 

11. TTUHSC:  Approve granting of tenure.  
 

Presenter:  Steven L. Berk, M.D.            Presentation Time: 1 minute 
Board approval required by:  Section 04.02, Regents’ Rules; HSC Operating Policy 60.01 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that tenure be 
granted, effective this date, to the individuals as listed below: 
 

Allan Haynes, M.D., professor, Department of Urology, School of 
Medicine; 

 
Patti Patterson, M.D., MPH, professor, Department of Pediatrics, School 

of Medicine; and 
 
Ronald Hall, Pharm.D., associate professor, Department of Pharmacy 

Practice, School of Pharmacy. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Approval of tenure at this Board meeting for these individuals and the individuals 
listed on ACS- 21 brings the number of tenured faculty in all academic schools of 
the Health Sciences Center to 146 .There are a total of 199 faculty either in the 
tenure-track or tenured. After these appointments, the percentage of tenure track 
faculty who has been awarded tenure will be 73.3 percent. The number of faculty 
that is non-tenure track is 551. 
 
 
  



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-23 

12. TTUHSC:  Approve the estab lishment of an online Master 
of Science in Clinical Mental  Health Counseling degree in 
Lubbock.  

 
Presenter:  Dr. Tedd Mitchell    Presentation Time: 5 minutes 
Board approval required by: Section 04.09.1, Regents’ Rules; HSC Operating Policy 
60.11 and Chapter 5, Subchapter C, THECB Laws and Rules 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve the establishment of an online Master of Science (“MS”) in 
Clinical Mental Health Counseling degree in Lubbock and authorize the 
submission by the senior vice president for Academic Affairs to the Texas Higher 
Education Coordinating Board and the Southern Association of Colleges and 
Schools Commission on Colleges seeking their approval for such a program. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
A critical mental health counselor shortage has been documented in the rural 
West Texas region, and current estimates are that this shortfall will grow by an 
additional 19% over the next seven years.  Compounding this shortfall is a 
process of increasing the pre-service educational requirements for counselors 
nationwide coupled with more stringent licensure requirements recently put in 
place (48 credit hours to 60 credit hours).  The projected shortfall reflects data 
from urban areas within the region, and does not reflect the majority of rural 
communities which may lack services entirely.  Using a distance education model 
the program anticipates drawing a diverse student body from groups with limited 
access to traditional educational models. 
 
The Master of Science in Clinical Mental Health Counseling has, as an integral 
part of the curricula, an emphasis on distance based service provision, which is a 
cutting edge technique growing in practice and acceptance nationwide.  Building 
upon the existing strengths of the F. Marie Hall Institute for Rural Health at Texas 
Tech University Health Sciences Center (“TTUHSC”), the students will be eligible 
for certification in tele-health, creating the first Clinical Mental Health Counselor 
program in the United States to train practitioners simultaneously in clinical 
counseling skills and distance service provision techniques.  Accredited by the 
Council for the Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational Programs, 
graduates will be eligible to sit for the National Counselor Exam, which is 
required for licensure as a Licensed Professional Counselor in Texas. 
 
COSTS and FUNDING 
 
All costs associated with the new program are recurring costs and are outlined in 
the table below. Total recurring costs of $717,493.00 are expected over the initial 
five years of the program with costs for FY 2017 and FY 2018 being $31,084 and 



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-24 

$165,875 respectively.  Funding for these recurring costs include reallocated 
funds from vacant positions, new formula funding, board authorized tuition, and 
out of state distance learning fees resulting from increased enrollment.  
 
 
Recurring 
Costs 

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 5 YR Total

Faculty $20,250 $129,375 $143,425 $136,429 $134,179 $563,659 
Staff $10,834 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000 $138,834 
Operating 
Costs 

 $4,500 $3,500 $3,500 $3,500 $15,000 

Total 
Expenses 

$31,084 $165,875 $178,925 $171,929 $169,679 $717,493 

 
Funding 
Sources 

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 5 YR Total

Reallocated 
Funds from 
Vacant 
Positions 

$31,084 $123,875 $73,025   $227,984 

Anticipated New 
Formula 
Funding 

   $92,927 $92,927 $185,854 

Board 
Authorized 
Tuition 

 $6,000 $14,700 $26,700 $35,700 $83,100 

Out of State 
Distance 
Learning Fees 

 $36,000 $91,200 $160,800 $211,200 $499,200 

Total Funding 
Sources 

     $996,138 

 
Projected Student Enrollment FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
 0 14 32 56 66 

 
  



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-25 

13. TTUHSC:  Approve the estab lishment of an online Master 
of Science in Addiction Counseling degree in Lubbock.  

 
Presenter:  Dr. Tedd Mitchell    Presentation Time: 5 minutes 
Board approval required by: Section 04.09.1, Regents’ Rules; HSC Operating Policy 
60.11 and Chapter 5, Subchapter C, THECB Laws and Rules 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve the establishment of an online Master of Science (“MS”) in 
Addiction Counseling degree in Lubbock and authorize the submission by the 
executive vice president for Academic Affairs to the Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board and the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools 
Commission on Colleges seeking their approval for such a program. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
A critical shortage of addiction counselors exists throughout the State of Texas 
and is projected to worsen over the next 10 years. The behavioral healthcare 
industry is growing rapidly due to recent changes in federal legislation and the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics projects the need for addiction counselors, in Texas, to 
grow by 30% from 2012 to 2024.  The degree program will be delivered using a 
distance education model, allowing the School of Health Professions to recruit 
students from areas with limited access to traditional educational models. 
 
The Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center (“TTUHSC”) Master of 
Science in Addiction Counseling will have, as an integral part of the curricula, an 
emphasis on telehealth.  Graduate students will be eligible for certification in 
telehealth through the F. Marie Hall Institute for Rural Health at TTUHSC, 
creating the first Addiction Counseling program in the United States to train 
practitioners simultaneously in clinical counseling skills and distance service 
provision techniques.  Accredited by the Council for the Accreditation of 
Counseling and Related Educational Programs (“CACREP”), graduates will be 
eligible to pursue licensure in Texas. There are only seven CACREP accredited 
masters-level addiction counseling programs in the nation, with only one of those 
using a distance education model. This new Addiction Counseling Degree 
Program will further the mission of the university, school, and department by 
offering students the academic and clinical foundation needed to pursue 
employment and deploy clinical services in rural areas across the rapidly growing 
behavioral health industry. 
 
COSTS and FUNDING 
 
All costs associated with the new program are recurring costs and are outlined in 
the table below. Total recurring costs of $718,408.00 are expected over the initial 
five years of the program with costs for FY 2017 and FY 2018 being $31,084 and 



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-26 

$162,875 respectively.  Funding for these recurring costs include reallocated 
funds from vacant positions, new formula funding, board authorized tuition, and 
out of state distance learning fees resulting from increased enrollment.  
 
Recurring 
Costs 

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 5 YR Total

Faculty $20,250 $126,375 $136,825 $141,575 $139,550 $564,575 
Staff $10,834 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000 $32,000 $138,834 
Operating 
Costs 

 $4,500 $3,500 $3,500 $3,500 $15,000 

Total 
Expenses 

$31,084 $162,875 $172,325 $177,075 $175,050 $718,409 

 
Funding 
Sources 

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 5 YR Total

Reallocated 
Funds from 
Vacant 
Positions 

$31,084 $137,075 $96,125   $264,284 

Anticipated New 
Formula 
Funding 

   $71,483 $71,483 $142,966 

Board 
Authorized 
Tuition 

 $1,800 $11,400 $21,600 $29,700 $64,500 

Out of State 
Distance 
Learning Fees 

 $24,000 $64,800 $120,000 $163,200 $372,000 

Total Funding 
Sources 

     $843,750 

 
Projected Student Enrollment FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
 0 10 24 44 54 

 
  



02/23-24/2017 

ACS-27 

14. TTUHSC El Paso:  Appro ve changes in academic rank.  
 

Presenter:  Richard A. Lange, MD, MBA                         Presentation Time:  2 minutes 
Board approval required by:  Section 04.02, Regents’ Rules; HSC El Paso Operating 
Policy 60.01 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve changes in academic rank, effective September 1, 2017, to 
the individuals as listed below: 
 
Non-Tenure Track Faculty: 
 

Nassim Akle, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 
Department of Radiology, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 

 
Annoop Ayyappan, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Radiology, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 
 
Jesus Calleros-Macias, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Radiology, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 
 
S. Claudia Didia, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Internal Medicine, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 
 
Shaked Laks, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Radiology, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 
 
Melissa Mendez, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Obstetrics/Gynecology, Paul L. Foster School of 
Medicine 

 
Jennifer Molokwu, M.D., M.P.H., assistant professor to associate 

professor, Department of Family and Community Medicine, Paul L. 
Foster School of Medicine 

 
Michael Parsa, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Emergency Medicine, Paul L. Foster School of 
Medicine 

 
Indu Pathak, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, Department 

of Pediatrics, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 
 
Jesus Peinado, M.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 

Department of Pediatrics, Paul L. Foster School of Medicine 
 





02/23-24/2017 

ACS-29 

15. TTUHSC El Paso:  Approve change in academic rank and 
granting of tenure.  

 
Presenter:  Richard A. Lange, MD, MBA           Presentation Time: 1 minute 
Board approval required by:  Section 04.02, Regents’ Rules; HSC Operating Policy 60.01 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The chancellor concurs with the recommendation of the president that the Board 
of Regents approve changes in academic rank, effective September 1, 2017, and 
the granting of tenure concurrent with this change to the individual as listed 
below: 
 

Alok Dwivedi, Ph.D., assistant professor to associate professor, 
Department of Biomedical Sciences, Paul L. Foster School of 
Medicine. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
The member of the faculty whose names appear on the above list have been 
judged by the appropriate departmental and collegiate committees and 
administrative personnel as worthy of the promotion and granting of tenure for 
which he has been recommended.  The procedure used in recommending 
members of the faculty for promotion and tenure has been followed carefully. 
 
Approval of this individual for tenure brings the number of tenured faculty to 39.   
There are a total of 70 faculty either in the tenure-track or tenured. After these 
appointments, the percentage of tenure track faculty who have been awarded 
tenure at Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center at El Paso will be 55.7 
percent and faculty that are on the non-tenure track is 233. 
 
 
  





 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

AUDIT  
 



  02/23-24/2017 

 A - 1  

Audit Committee 
 

Committee Meeting 
February 23, 2017 

 
 

Time:  3:10 pm (or upon adjournment of the Academic, Clinical and Student 
Affairs Committee meeting) 

 
Place:  Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street 

and Akron Avenue, Lubbock, Texas 
 

Regents:  Steinmetz (Chair), Esparza, Hammonds, 
  

Agenda 
 

�x Approve minutes of committee meeting held on December 15, 2016 
 

III.D. Consideration of items to be recommended by the Audit Committee to the 
Board of Regents of the Texas Tech University System (“TTUS”) for and 
on behalf of Angelo State University (“ASU”), TTUS, the TTU System 
Administration (“TTUSA”), Texas Tech University (“TTU”), Texas Tech 
University Health Sciences Center (“TTUHSC”), and Texas Tech 
University Health Sciences Center at El Paso (“TTUHSC El Paso”) 

 
 Page 
   A 
 

1. TTUS:  Report on audits ......................................................... 3 

2. Executive Session:  The Audit Committee will convene into 
Executive Session in the Red Raider Lounge (Room 119), 
First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street and Akron 
Avenue, to consider matters permissible under Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code, including:   

a. Consultation with Attorney — Section 551.071. 

b. Discussion of personnel matters – Section 551.074. 

3. Open Session:  At the conclusion of Executive Session, the 
committee will convene into Open Session in the Ballroom 
(Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street 
and Akron Avenue, to consider appropriate action, if any, on 
items discussed in Executive Session. 

4. Adjournment 
 



  02/23-24/2017 

 A - 2  

 
NOTE: Following consideration of the above items by the 

committee, the Committee Chair will present the 
Committee Report to the full Board of Regents for its 
consideration on Friday, February 24, 2017. 

  



  02/23-24/2017 

 A - 3  

1. TTUS:  Report on audits.  
 
Presenter:  Mrs. Kim Turner    Presentation Time: 10 minutes 
Report to Board required by:  Section 07.02.7, Regents’ Rules; and Audit Committee 
Charter 

 
Mrs. Kim Turner, Chief Audit Executive, will present a report on the System’s 
audit projects. 
 
 
 







  02/23-24/2017 

 CW-2 

Meeting of the Board 
Thursday, February 23, 2017 

 
Time:  3:45 pm (or upon adjournment of the last committee meeting of the day 

or whenever deemed necessary) 
 
Place:  Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street 

and Akron Avenue, Lubbock, Texas 
 

Agenda 
 
IV. Meeting of the Board—Call to Order; 

reconvene into Open Session of the Board  ............................. Chairman  
 
V. Executive Session:  The Board may convene into Executive 

Session in the Red Raider Lounge (Room 119), First Floor, 
Student Union Building, 15th Street and Akron Avenue to consider 
matters permissible under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code, including, for example:   ..................................................... Chairman 

 
A. Consultation with attorney regarding privileged 

communications, pending or contemplated litigation and 
settlement negotiations – Section 551.071 

 
B. Deliberations regarding real property:  The purchase, 

lease, exchange, or value of real property – Section 
551.072 

 
C. Deliberations regarding prospective gifts – Section 551.073 
 
D. Personnel matters: Discuss the appointment, employment, 

evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of 
employees – Section 551.074 

 
E. Deliberations regarding security devices—deployment of 

security personnel or devices – Section 551.076 
 

VI. Open Session:  The Board will reconvene in Open Session in the 
Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th 
Street and Akron Avenue and meet as a Committee of the Whole 
and Meeting of the Board to consider and act on: 

 
  A. Consideration of appropriate action, if any, on items 

discussed in Executive Session .................................... Vice Chairman 
 
VII. Recess  ......................................................................................... Chairman 



  02/23-24/2017 

 CW-3 

Meeting of the Board 
Friday, February 24, 2017 

 
 

Time:  8:30 am 
 
Place:  Ballroom (Room 118), First Floor, Student Union Building, 15th Street 

and Akron Avenue, Lubbock, Texas 
 

Agenda 
 
VIII. Meeting of the Board—Call to Order; reconvene into 

Open Session of the Board  ........................................................ Chairman 
 
IX. Introductions and Recognitions  ................................ Chancellor Duncan, 
    President May, 
    President Schovanec 
    President Mitchell, and 
    President Lange 
 
X. Recess (if necessary, for standing committees to meet; 

otherwise continue in Open Session (XIII.)) .................................. Chairman 
 
XI. Meeting of Standing Committees  (if not concluded on Thursday) 

 
XII. Meeting of the Board—Call to  Order; reconvene into Open 

Session of the Board  
 
XIII.  Open Session: The Board will continue in Open Session and meet as a   

Committee of the Whole and Meeting of the Board to consider and act on: 
 
A. Approve minutes of Board meetings held on  

December 15-16, 2016 ...................................................... Chairman 
 
B. Committee of the Whole ............................................. Vice Chairman 

    Page 
    CW 
  

1. ASU, TTU, TTUHSC, TTUHSC El Paso, TTUSA, 
and TTUS:  Approve Consent Agenda; acknowledge 
review of Information Agenda .......................................... 7 

Consent Agenda 

a. TTU: Approve faculty development leaves of 
absence (ACS) 











 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CONSENT/ 
INFORMATION 

AGENDA  



 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

TEXAS TECH UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

and 

INFORMATION AGENDA 

 
February 23-24, 2017 

 
 

BOARD OF REGENTS 
 

Mr. Mickey L. Long, Chairman 

Mr. John D. Esparza 

Mr. L. Frederick “Rick” Francis 

Mr. Ron Hammonds 

Mr. Christopher M. Huckabee 

Mr. Tim Lancaster 

Mr. J. Michael Lewis* 

Mr. John D. Steinmetz 

Mr. John B. Walker* 

Mr. Jeremy W. Stewart, Student-Regent 

 
Standing Committees: 

Academic, Clinical and Student Affairs: 
Tim Lancaster (Chair); Rick Francis; John Esparza; Jeremy Stewart 

 
Audit: 

John Steinmetz (Chair); John Esparza; Ron Hammonds 
 

Facilities: 
Chris Huckabee (Chair); John Steinmetz 

 
Finance and Administration: 

Rick Francis (Chair); Tim Lancaster 
 
 

(*Pending confirmation of their appointment.) 





   

 iii  

INFORMATION AGENDA  

 
(Titles only; full agenda is on page 17) 
Information is provided as required by 
Section 01.02.7.d(4)(c), Regents' Rules 
 

NOTE:  The following are reports or other documents which, according to the Regents’ Rules or 
state law, must be made available to the Board of Regents.  As such, the reports below are on file 
in the Board Office, and their listing on the Information Agenda constitutes notice that they are 
available to Board members upon request. 
 
 

(1) ASU, TTU, TTUHSC and TTUHSC El Paso:  Summary of 
Revenues and Expenditures by Budget Category, FY 2017, per 
Section 01.02.8.d(3)(g), Regents' Rules  – All actual expenditures will 
be reviewed by the Finance and Administration Committee annually and provided 
as information. 

 
(2) TTU:   Consulting contracts wi th an initial consideration of 

$25,000 or less per Section 07.12.4.e.(2), Regents’ Rules  – “(a) 
Board approval is not required, but notice of the proposed contract must be 
provided to the chair and the chair of the Finance and Administration Committee 
prior to execution of the contract.  (b)  A report of the contract shall be provided 
as an Information Agenda item at the next board meeting.” 

 
(3) TTU:  Report on establishment of  new centers and institutes 

per Section 04.11.2., Regents’ Rules  – “The establishment or 
substantive restructuring of a center, institute, or other academic unit or program 
not addressed in Section 04.11.1 herein shall be approval by the president, with 
notice provided to the board via an item in the information Agenda for the next 
meeting of the board.” 

















02/23-24/2017 

 8  

provides that leaves may be granted under conditions allowable by the State of 
Texas. Faculty members submit requests for leave through their respective 
deans to the provost. The provost has approved each leave as indicated, based 
on recommendations of the Faculty Development Leave Committee which 
evaluated the applications. The principle objective of faculty development leaves 
is to enable faculty members to engage in study, research, writing, field work, or 
similar professional activities for a period of time free from their obligations at the 
university. 
 
The ultimate purpose of faculty development leaves is to subsequently enhance 
educational offerings available to Texas Tech University students through the 
faculty members’ refreshed or expanded knowledge gained from the leave 
activities. A faculty member is eligible when he or she has served as a member 
of the Texas Tech faculty for at least five academic years and is tenured by the 
time of the leave.  Applications are reviewed according to criteria including the 
potential of the work to contribute to the faculty members’ field, evidence that the 
faculty member has already shown professional growth in the field, and evidence 
of the potential for continuing scholarship in teaching and research at Texas 
Tech. Faculty development leaves may be granted for one semester at full salary 
or for an academic year (two semesters) at one-half salary. 
  





02/23-24/2017 

 10  

c. ASU:  Approve commissioning of police officers.  
 

Board approval required by: Section 51.203, Texas Education Code  
  
The request is to commission the following individuals as police officers, effective 
on the date indicated below.  This request has been approved administratively by 
the president and the chancellor and is recommended for approval by the Board 
of Regents: 
 
  Samantha Rodriguez, effective December 16, 2016 
  Juan Soto, effective December 16, 2016 
   

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

The Board of Regents routinely takes action to commission certain employees as 
peace officers in accordance with Texas Education Code, Section 51.203. 
 







02/23-24/2017 

 13  

f. TTUS, TTU, TTUHSC and TTUHSC El Paso:  Approve 
purchasing contracts in excess of $1,000,000 per annum. 

 
Board approval required by:  Section 07.12.3.a, Regents’ Rules 

 
The request is to approve purchasing contracts in excess of $1,000,000 per 
annum.  This request has been approved administratively by the chancellor and 
the president and is recommended for approval by the Board of Regents. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
In accordance with the Regents’ Rules, the Board is routinely requested to 
approve the purchasing contracts that exceed $1,000,000 per annum.  
Purchasing contracts are all compliant with Texas Education Code § 51.9335 
and component Operating Policies and Procedures.  Approval is requested for 
each vendor. 
 
Section 07.12.3.a. Regents’ Rules, requires Board approval on contracts that 
involve a stated or implied consideration that totals in excess of $1,000,000 over 
the term of the contract.   
  



02/23-24/2017 

 14  

TTUS,��TTU,��TTUHSC��and��TTUHSC��El��Paso:����Approve��purchasing��contracts��in��excess��of��$1,000,000��

Component�� Vendor��
Services��or��Goods��

to��be��Provided��
Per��Annum��

Expenditures Start�� End��
Procurement��

Method��
TTUS,��TTU,��TTUHSC,��
TTUHSC��at��El��Paso��

Ellucian/Texas��
A&M��Corpus��Christi��

Technology��software��
and��services��

$1,400,000�� 5/2/2016�� 5/31/2021 DIR��

TTU/TTUS�� Dell�� Technology��hardware,��
software��and��
peripherals��

$6,125,000�� 1/10/2017�� 4/9/2020�� DIR��

TTU/TTUS�� Apple�� Technology��hardware,��
software��and��
peripherals��

$1,500,000�� 3/1/2017�� 5/8/2020�� DIR��

 
  
 
 
 
 
  



02/23-24/2017 

 15  

 
g. TTUS, TTU, TTUHSC, TTUHSC El Paso and ASU: Approve 

delegation of signature authority. 
 

Board approval required by: Title III Section 6.3b of the Texas General Appropriations 
Act; and Section 09.02.3, Regents’ Rules which requires the annual delegation of 
signature authority to appropriate officers and employees each fiscal year.  
 
 

The request, in accordance with Title III Section 6.3b of the Texas General 
Appropriations Act, is to approve signature authority as listed below.   This 
request has been approved administratively by the chancellor and respective 
component presidents, and is recommended for approval by the Board of 
Regents.  
 
(1) To authorize the chancellor to designate officers and employees of the 

System and its components, to approve all employee travel, except to 
countries outside the United States other than United States possessions, 
Canada, and Mexico, provided that such travel contributes to the mission 
of the System and its components, and is in accordance with current travel 
regulations. The authorization is effective September 1, 2016 through 
August 31, 2017, or until such time as the designated officers or 
employees are separated from the System or its components, or are 
assigned other responsibilities, whichever comes first.  

 
(2) To authorize the chancellor to designate officers and employees of the 

System and its components, to approve official travel reimbursement from 
State appropriations and all other funds for all officers and employees, 
provided that the purpose of the travel and reimbursement for such are in 
accordance with state travel regulations, other statutory requirements, or 
other action promulgated by this board. This authorization is effective 
September 1, 2016 through August 31, 2017, or until such time as the 
designated officers or employees are separated from the System or its 
components, or are assigned other responsibilities, whichever comes first.  

 
(3) To authorize the chancellor to designate officers and employees of the 

System and its components, to approve and pay all accounts covering 
expenditures for state-appropriated funds and all other System or 
components-controlled funds. This authorization is effective September 1, 
2016 through August 31, 2017, or until such time as the designated 
officers or employees are separated from the System or its components, 
or are assigned other responsibilities, whichever comes first.  

 
(4) To authorize and approve the sale, purchase, and transfer of stocks, 

bonds, and any other investment vehicles which are owned or controlled 
by the System and to approve contracts with investment managers funded 
with assets owned or controlled by the System, provided such action is 



02/23-24/2017 

 16  

approved by any two of the individuals listed below. This authorization is 
effective September 1, 2016 through August 31, 2017, or until such time 
as the designated officers or employees are separated from the System or 
its components, or are assigned other responsibilities,, whichever comes 
first, in which case the authorization applies to their successor:  

 
(5) To authorize the signature and/or countersignature of checks drawn on all 

depository accounts of the System or its components in any depository 
bank. This authorization is effective from September 1, 2016 through 
August 31, 2017, or until such time as the designated officers or 
employees are separated from the System or its components, or are 
assigned other responsibilities, whichever comes first, in which case the 
authorization applies to their successor. Any manually signed check shall 
be reviewed and signed by two authorized signers, and any mechanically 
signed check of $25,000 or more shall be reviewed by any authorized 
signer.  

 
Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center  

 
Officers and employees authorized to sign, or countersign:  
 

Penny Harkey, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, TTUHSC  
 
(6) To authorize the transfer of funds, by wire or other electronic means, from 

System or component depositories. This authorization is effective from 
September 1, 2016 through August 31, 2017, or until such time as the 
designated officers or employees are separated from the System or its 
components, or are assigned other responsibilities, whichever comes first, 
in which case the authorization applies to their successor.  

 
Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center  
 
Wire transfers shall be approved by any two authorized individuals listed:  

Penny Harkey, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, TTUHSC  
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
Title III Section 6.3b of the Texas General Appropriations Act, and Section 
09.02.3, Regents’ Rules requires the annual delegation of signature authority to 
appropriate officers and employees each fiscal year.









 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 
 








	Agenda
	Facilities Committee
	Finance and Administration Committee
	Academic, Clinical and Student Affairs Committee
	Audit
	Meeting of the Board/Committee of the Whole
	Consent and Information Agenda
	Consent Items
	Information Items
	Attachment
	ASU Proposed Admendments to OP 42.01, Admissions to Graduate Studies and Research

